1996

Kay Gneiting, Kerry Rick Hubble; and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. v. Dennis Vance : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Section 78-2(a)-3, Utah Code Ann. 1953 as amended.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES

The determinative law related to this appeal focuses primarily upon the following statutes and caselaw:

Rule 64D of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure;

Rule 69(e) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure;

Rule 69(g) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure;

Rule 69(h) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

1. On or about April 30, 1993, the trial court granted judgment in favor of the original Plaintiffs in this action, Leon and Arlene Robinson, and against Appellants herein, Kerry Rick Hubble, and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc.

2. On or about October 20, 1994, the trial court originally entered judgment in favor of Appellants, Kerry Rick Hubble and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. on their Crossclaim against Appellee and Third-party Defendant, Dennis Vance. On March 13, 1995, that judgment was amended to reflect the total amount of the judgment to be \$86,688.58 together with interest at 9.22% per annum. *A copy of the Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". A copy of the Amended Judgment is attached hereto as Exhibit "B".*

3. On or about February 17, 1995, the trial court issued a Writ of Garnishment in favor of Appellants naming the original Plaintiffs Leon and Arlene Robinson as garnishees, and Appellee and Third-party Defendant Dennis Vance as judgment debtor. The garnishment was based on a purported "fee sharing" agreement that Vance had with the Robinsons.

4. The February 17, 1995 Writ of Garnishment was never served.

5. On or about March 13, 1995, the trial court also signed an Order pursuant to Rule 69 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, providing for an offset in favor of Appellants, Hubble and Wilderness, and against any recovery Vance might be entitled to from the Robinsons. *A copy of the Amended Order is attached hereto as Exhibit "C".*

6. The March 13, 1995 Order pursuant to Rule 69 was also never served upon any individual or entity for the purpose of attachment or garnishment.

7. Appellee, Dennis Vance, has taken the position that he had a contract with Leon and Arlene Robinson wherein he was to receive 40% of all amounts recovered by the Robinsons against the Hubble and Wilderness Defendants. Vance previously testified under oath during his deposition and at trial that such an agreement did not exist.

8. On March 16, 1995, Plaintiffs Leon and Arlene Robinson and Appellants herein, Kerry Rick Hubble and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. settled all disputes and claims between themselves. The judgment obtained by Appellants against Appellee and Third-party Defendant Dennis Vance was unaffected by that settlement. *A copy of the Stipulated Settlement, Satisfaction and Release of All Claims is attached hereto as Exhibit "D".*

9. Subsequent thereto, Appellee Vance filed a Claim of Exemption related to the Robinson settlement. Appellants and the Robinsons responded to the claim of exemption. The Request for Hearing was filed on April 6, 1995.

10. Without taking any evidence, and without affording any of the parties an opportunity for hearing, the trial court initiated a conference call on June 19, 1995 and announced that an exemption would be granted. No record was made of the conference call, but a minute entry of the call was placed in the file. *A copy of the Minute Entry is attached as Exhibit "E" hereto.*

11. Counsel for Appellee prepared an Order to that effect which was entered on July 10, 1995. The Order did not address the confidentiality of the Robinson/Wilderness Building Systems, Inc./Hubble Settlement Agreement and did not establish any dollar amount to which Appellee was entitled. *A copy of the July 10, 1995 Order is attached hereto as Exhibit "F".*

12. The Order did not resolve the issues, rather encouraged the parties to attempt to

determine, agree and divide among themselves the amounts to be paid to or retained by each, Robinsons, Vance and Hubble."

13. The parties were unable to reach such an agreement. Appellants objected to the *carte blanche* violation of the Robinson/Hubble/Wilderness confidentiality agreement, the calculation of the exemption, and the amount of the attorney's fees figure submitted as a deduction against the exemption calculation. Appellants objected to the allowance of any exemption.

14. At the request of Vance's counsel, the trial court conducted an in-chambers conference with counsel only on October 12, 1995. During that conference, the trial court required the disclosure of the confidential terms of the settlement agreements, imposed a further order of confidentiality, and entered final judgment on Dennis Vance's claim for an exemption related to the settlement between the Robinsons and the Hubble and Wilderness Defendants. The court's directive took the form of a Judgment on Claim of Dennis Vance prepared by Vance's counsel and entered on October 24, 1995. *A copy of the Judgment is attached hereto as Exhibit "G".*

15. On October 27, 1995, Appellants filed their Notice of Appeal specifically stating that the appeal was from the entirety of the October 24, 1995 Judgment.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The issues presented on appeal in this case are (a) whether Dennis Vance was entitled to an exemption against the settlement agreement reached by and between Plaintiffs, Leon and Arlene Robinson, and Defendants, Kerry Rick Hubble and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc.; (b) whether the court's order for the disclosure to Vance of the confidential settlement agreement

between Plaintiffs and Defendants was proper; and (c) whether the trial court appropriately entered judgment against Third-Party Plaintiffs and in favor of Third-Party Defendant, Dennis Vance, for the \$12,751.08 judgment amount.

Standard of Review. The Appellate Court accords conclusions of law no particular deference, but reviews them for correctness. Scharf v. BMG Corp., 700 P.2d 1068, 1070 (Utah 1985).

To successfully attack the lower court's findings on factual issues, an appellant must demonstrate that when viewed "in the light most favorable to the findings, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings . . . or that its findings are otherwise clearly erroneous." Schindler v. Schindler, 776 P.2d 84, 88 (Ut. Ct. App. 1989).

ARGUMENT

I.

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN GRANTING THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR CLAIM OF EXEMPTION

A. No Writ of Garnishment or Order Pursuant to Rule 69 Has Ever Been Served Upon the Robinsons for Garnishment or Attachment Purposes.

Any right to the exemption claimed by Appellee could not exist for the Writ of Garnishment or the Rule 69 Order was served. Appellants have never served nor caused to be served the Writ of Garnishment or the Rule 69 Order upon the Robinsons for garnishment or attachment purposes. Rule 69(g) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides that at the time a Writ of Execution or Garnishment is served, a notice of execution and exemptions and a right

to a hearing and two copies of an application for hearing must be served upon the judgment debtor by the garnishee. Because there has been no writ or garnishment order served upon the garnishee, there is no requirement that notice be provided to the judgment debtor and any claim for exemption would also be premature.

Rule 69 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure specifically sets forth the mandatory procedure concerning execution and notice of exemptions. The relevant portions of Rule 69 are as follows:

. . . .

(e) **When writ to be returned.** The writ of execution shall be served at any time within sixty days after its receipt by the officer. It shall then be returned to the court from which it issued, and when it is returned the clerk must attach it to the record.

. . . .

(g) **Notice to judgment debtor of sale and of exempt property and right to a hearing.** At the time the writ of execution is issued, the clerk shall attach to the writ a notice of execution and exemptions and right to a hearing and two copies of an application by which the judgment debtor may request a hearing.

Upon service of the writ, the sheriff or constable shall serve upon the judgment debtor, in the same manner as service of a summons in a civil action, or cause to be transmitted by both regular and certified mail, returned receipt requested, to the judgment debtor's last known address as provided by the judgment creditor, (i) the notice of execution and exemptions and right to a hearing, and (ii) the application by which the judgment debtor may request a hearing.

. . . .

(h) **Request for hearing.**

(1) **Time for request.** The judgment debtor or any other person who owns or claims an interest in the property subject to execution may request a hearing to claim any exemption to the execution, or to challenge the issuance of the writ. Such request must be filed or served upon the judgment creditor or the

attorney for the judgment creditor within ten (10) days of the service upon the judgment debtor of the materials required to be served by paragraph (g) upon the judgment debtor. The request for a hearing, which shall be provided to the judgment debtor shall be in a form to enable the judgment debtor to specify the grounds upon which the judgment debtor challenges the issuance of the writ or claims the property executed upon to be exempt, in whole or in part.

(2) If a request for hearing is filed. If a request for hearing is filed by or on behalf of the judgment debtor, the court shall set the matter for hearing within ten (10) days from the filing of the request and serve notice of that hearing upon all parties by first class mail. If the court determines at the hearing that the writ was issued improperly, or that any property seized is exempt from or is not subject to execution, the court shall immediately issue an order to the officer releasing such property or portion thereof from the writ of execution. If the court finds that the property or a portion thereof is subject to execution and not exempt, it shall issue an order directing the officer to proceed with the sale of the non-exempt property subject to execution.

No writ nor Rule 69 order was ever served upon the Robinsons as judgment creditor for purposes of garnishment, attachment, or execution. Vance was never served with a notice of execution, a notice of exemption, nor was he ever provided information concerning the required hearing. Rule 69 requires that any such writ or order, together with the required notices, be served upon the judgment debtor in the same manner as a summons is served in a civil action. Within ten (10) days after service, the judgment debtor must file and serve his request for hearing. Once the request for hearing is filed, the court is required to set the matter for hearing within ten (10) days from the filing of the request and serve notice of that hearing upon all parties by first class mail. (Rule 69(h)(2) U.R.C.P.). No hearing was ever conducted on Vance's claim for exemption and Appellants were never afforded the opportunity to present evidence and/or testimony concerning the existence or nonexistence of Vance's claimed

entitlement to a percentage of the Robinson recovery, the nature of the confidential stipulation for settlement between the Robinsons and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc./Hubble, the attorney's fee issue, or the determination of whether any such recovery could be classified as "earnings". The procedural safeguards set forth in Rule 69 were accordingly short circuited and the Appellants have been prejudiced thereby.

B. Vance's Claim That He is Entitled to Monies Due Under a Fee Percentage Agreement with the Robinsons is Inconsistent with His Prior Testimony.

Despite Appellants' belief throughout the litigation that Vance was in collusion with the Robinsons in some form of percentage sharing agreement, Appellee, Dennis Vance, has heretofore claimed that there was no agreement between himself and the Robinsons related to this case. During his deposition of April 13, 1992, he was asked the following:

Q: Did you expect that you were going to receive some money as a result of the Robinson episode?

A: No.

April 13, 1992 Deposition, page 23, lines 13-15.

Q: Did you offer to help the Robinsons at that time?

A: The first thing I did was explain to them, no charge, no cost, no obligation. It was just a matter of conscience. And I explained it as fully as I could. They asked me to please explain this same situation to their attorney.

April 13, 1992 Deposition, page 28, lines 18-24.

Q: Okay. Just so that I'm clear, you have absolutely no financial arrangement with the Robinsons relative to this case?

A: No.

April 13, 1992 Deposition, page 33, lines 24-25; page 34, lines 1-2.

During the June 1, 1994 trial of this matter, Dennis Vance also testified unequivocally that there was no agreement between he and the Robinsons relative to this case. His allegation now is that indeed such an agreement existed, but that it was a "verbal" agreement wherein he was to receive a 40% commission on any recovery made by the Robinsons against the Appellants.

C. Even if Vance Had an Agreement to Share in the Robinson's Recovery, as a Matter of Law He is Not Entitled to Claim an Exemption Against Those Funds.

Appellee asserted at the trial court level, after judgment was entered against him, that he was entitled to a claim of exemption relative to any garnishment that levied against funds purportedly due him from the Robinsons, claiming that such funds are "disposable earnings." The Utah Supreme Court was called upon to decide a similar issue in the 1992 case of Funk v. Utah State Tax Com'n, 839 P.2d 818 (Utah 1992). Therein the appellant claimed an exemption under Rule 64D(d)(viii) and 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1673(a), asserting that his "disposable earnings" were wholly exempt or partially exempt from garnishment. The Utah Supreme Court pointed out that the provisions of both the Consumer Credit Protection Act ("CCPA") at 15 U.S.C. § 1673(a) and Rule 64D of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, which are almost identical, limit the amount of an individual's earnings subject to garnishment to a percentage of disposable earnings. 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1673(a); Utah R. Civ. P. 64D(d)(viii). Each defines "earnings" as compensation paid for personal services, "whether denominated as wages, salary, commission, bonus, or otherwise." Sec. 1672(a); Rule 64D(d)(viii). "Disposable earnings" are in turn defined as the earnings of an individual remaining after the deduction of amounts required by law to be withheld. Sec. 1672(a); Rule 64D(d)(viii).

In determining that the claim of exemption was not appropriate, the Utah Supreme Court in Funk, supra, distinguished the claimant's claim from "wages, salary, bonus, commission, or otherwise" based upon the variability and availability of such from year to year and the expectation of receiving such compensation as only developing after the preparation of a tax return earlier in the year. The Utah Supreme Court determined that allowing the entire garnishment without any exemption "would not place the type of hardship on a debtor that Rule 64D and the CCPA seek to avoid." Funk v. Utah State Tax Com'n, supra, 839 P.2d at 821. There is a distinct difference between a claim from "wages, salary, bonus, commission, or otherwise" and the one time sharing of a "percentage recovery" based upon the variability and availability of such from year to year and the expectation of receiving such compensation as only developing after the occurrence of some event. Funk v. Utah State Tax Com'n, supra, 839 P.2d at 821. *See also* Kokoszka v. Belford, 417 U.S. 642, 651, 94 S.Ct. 2431, 2436, 41 L.Ed.2d 374 (1974). The allowance of the entire garnishment without any exemption "would not place the type of hardship on a debtor that Rule 64D and the CCPA seek to avoid." Funk v. Utah State Tax Com'n, supra, 839 P.2d at 821.

By the same token, Appellee's claim that he had an entitlement to a "40% commission" on the Robinson judgment is within the very same class of claims that the Utah Supreme Court excluded from the garnishment exemption rule. Appellee's claim is clearly not wages, salary, or regular commission earned on a week-to-week, month-to-month, or even year-to-year basis. Indeed the alleged agreement for payment of such didn't even require Appellee to perform any cognizable service. At best, Appellee's agreement was an improper attempt to share an attorney's fee based on a percentage fee agreement.

Appellee has heretofore argued that the 1958 case of Russell M. Miller Company v. Givan, 325 P.2d 908 (Utah 1958), is controlling on this issue in the State of Utah. That case, however, is distinguishable on the basis that the issue there focused on whether the calculation of the exemption was based upon the "earnings from personal services" before taking into account his capital expenditures required to generate those earnings, or if the exemption must be calculated solely on his net income after taking into account for all of his expenses. The 1992 Funk v. Utah State Tax Com'n, *supra*, case deals more specifically with the issue of determining what actually constitutes "earnings" as it relates to a claim of exemption.

D. Vance Had No Right to Invade the Confidential Nature of the Compromise and Stipulation for Settlement Reached Between the Robinsons and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc./Hubble.

The Robinsons and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc./Hubble negotiated a settlement of their dispute and for the satisfaction of the judgment previously entered in favor of the Robinsons. Vance was not a party to that settlement agreement. The agreement did not affect any claim or right that Vance may have had against the Robinsons, nor did it alter any claim or right that Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. and Hubble had against Vance. No writ of execution had ever been served upon the Robinsons. The stipulation for settlement clearly bound the parties thereto, the Robinsons, Wilderness Building Systems, Inc., and Kerry Rick Hubble. It also, however, bound the trial court. Stipulations in civil actions are binding upon the parties to the stipulation, the trial court, and appellate courts. Am. Jur. 2d, *Stipulations* § 73, at 543-44. Appellants should have been afforded the opportunity at hearing to present evidence supporting the grounds and reasons for maintaining the confidential nature of the settlement

agreement.

II.

ALLOWING THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT VANCE TO PROFIT FROM HIS FRAUDULENT ACTS VIA A CLAIM OF EXEMPTION FLIES IN THE FACE OF FAIRNESS, EQUITY AND JUSTICE

The various actions before the trial court in this matter resulted in (a) a judgment being entered against Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. and Kerry Rick Hubble ("*original Defendants and Appellants herein*") and in favor of Leon and Arlene Robinson ("*original Plaintiffs*"); and, (b) a judgment being entered on the related cross-claim against Dennis Vance ("*third-party defendant and Appellee herein*") in favor of Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. and Kerry Rick Hubble ("*third-party plaintiffs and Appellants herein*"). The judgement against Third-party Defendant Vance was originally entered on October 20, 1994 and subsequently amended by the Court on March 13, 1995. In essence, the amended judgement against Vance was a mirror of the judgement entered by the Court against the Appellants Wilderness Building Systems, Inc./Kerry Rick Hubble and in favor of the "*original Plaintiffs*", Leon and Arlene Robinson, together with additional amounts for Vance's wrongful conversion of the Appellant's property. The trial court specifically found in its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law that:

. . . .

16. Third-Party Defendant, Dennis Vance, concocted, engaged in, and orchestrated a scheme to defraud the Robinsons, Hubble, Gneiting, and Wilderness Building Systems, knowingly, willfully, maliciously, and with reckless disregard for their rights.

. . . .

29. Third-Party Defendant, Dennis Vance, has steadfastly refused to acknowledge any wrongdoing in this case, despite the fact that the fraud he perpetrated upon all of the parties in this case is manifest. The fact that Dennis Vance has shown no remorse, regret, or repentance of any kind whatsoever, leads to the conclusion that there is a great likelihood that he will engage in similar conduct in the future.

30. Third-Party Defendant, Dennis Vance, engaged in a conspiracy to defraud the Robinsons, Hubble, Gneiting, and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc., to the substantial detriment to each of those parties.

31. An award of compensatory damages in the amount of \$24,780.56, together with prejudgment interest in the amount of \$16,583.97, and postjudgment interest at the rate of 12% per annum from April 21, 1993, should be awarded in favor of Kerry Rick Hubble and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc.

32. In addition, it is appropriate that Kerry Rick Hubble and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc., be awarded damages against Dennis Blaine Vance in the amount of \$816.00, which amount represents monies wrongfully obtained by Vance.

33. Kerry Rick Hubble and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc., should also be awarded damages against Dennis Blaine Vance in the amount of \$9,800.00 for the wrongful conversion of customer files and accounts to his own use.

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