1996

Kay Gneiting, Kerry Rick Hubble; and Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. v. Dennis Vance : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Vance first argues that this Court has no jurisdiction over the trial court's order of July 10th which was not appealed until October 27, 1995. The July Order was a "final order" requiring no further intervention by the court. Further aid was sought only because of Wilderness and Hubble's lack of cooperation. That resulted in a supplemental judgment issued by the court on October 24, 1996. Therefore, the appeal was not timely filed.

Vance, a debt collector by profession, entered into an oral contract with the Robinsons to aid in the collection of a claim they had against Wilderness and Hubble. Vance was to receive 40% of all amounts recovered from Wilderness and Hubble, less the Robinsons' attorney's fees and costs. A judgment was obtained against Wilderness and Hubble and collected by Robinsons. A judgment was also rendered against Vance and collection efforts of Wilderness and Hubble through attempted garnishment and ultimately a court ordered equivalent of garnishment in the form of an order of attachment on the commission owed to Vance and held by or due to be paid to Robinsons from Wilderness and Hubble, without consideration of Vance's statutory exemption, resulted in this action.

Wilderness and Hubble argue that there was no commission agreement. Vance disagrees, and for good and substantiated reason. He cites references to the record showing the understanding of all of the parties to the terms of that agreement.

Vance argues that the money to which he is entitled, is "earnings for personal services", thereby subject to the protection afforded by Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 64D(d)(viii)(A) which provides that the maximum amount of his disposable earnings available for attachment or garnishment is twenty-five per centum of his disposable earnings.

Wilderness and Hubble waived any rights they had for an evidentiary hearing on the exemption issue; they participated in two conference calls with the court and never sought more. After the court's ruling, Wilderness and Hubble accepted the actions taken by the trial court without objection, until this appeal.

Finally, Wilderness and Hubble argue that Vance should not be entitled to retain anything at all while at the same time forgetting that the court found Wilderness and Hubble liable for punitive damages in light of their dealings with the Robinsons. Vance argues that those demanding equity from a Court must have clean hands themselves.

ARGUMENT

I. THIS COURT HAS NO JURISDICTION OVER THE ORDERS SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW

Wilderness and Hubble's appeal focuses on the July Order. The July Order was a final order requiring no further intervention by the trial court. No appeal was timely taken and this Court therefore has no jurisdiction to hear it now. By the time it became apparent to Vance that Wilderness and Hubble would not

voluntarily cooperate with the July Order, the time for appealing the July Order had expired. Vance was required to seek post-judgment help from the trial court which resulted in the Supplemental Order from which Wilderness and Hubble have appealed.

By this appeal, Wilderness and Hubble are seeking only to further delay the obligation to return to Vance the money Wilderness and Hubble wrongfully withheld, which was always exempt from execution in March of 1995. They are also attempting to force Vance to exhaust any hope of personal recovery through his required payment of attorney's fees to lay claim to his statutory exemption.

By their contempt of the July Order, Wilderness and Hubble are now seeking to wrongfully and belatedly capitalize on the supplemental involvement of the trial court which they, themselves, forced upon Vance. They failed to timely appeal the final July Order and are now seeking a second bite of the apple by asking this Court to integrate that July Order with the Supplemental Order.

In the case of Wheelwright v. Roman, 165 P. 513, 514 (Utah 1917) the Utah State Supreme Court was asked to interpret the finality of a judgment which declared:

. . .that the deceased was the owner of all of said real estate at the time of her death, that at said time she also was the owner of all of the notes and mortgages, and that the defendant surrender all of said notes and mortgages to the plaintiff, as administratrix of said estate, and to account to her for any interest he had theretofore collected and for the rents and profits derived by him from said real estate since the death of the decedent. (Emphasis added)

On that occasion, the Court found at 517:

Plaintiff's counsel further contend that, in view that the judgment requires an accounting to be made by the defendant, for that reason the judgment is not final, and hence not appealable. The contention is not tenable. What is required from the defendant is a part of the final judgment. . . . The mere fact that the defendant is ordered to deliver the property to the plaintiff and to account to her for the interest that he may have collected on the notes and mortgages, etc., does not affect the finality of the judgment. (Emphasis added)

The Wheelwright analysis parallels the facts of this case. What was required of the parties in this action--to sit down and determine among themselves how the money should be divided--was "a part of the final judgment". In the Wheelwright case, accounting "for any interest he had theretofore collected and for the rents and profits derived by him from said real estate since the death of the decedent" clearly required some analysis and discussion among the parties but was not contemplated to have involved the court. Based upon that, the 1917 order was final. In like manner, the July Order in this case was final and the right to appeal could not be extended by the intentional failure on the part of Wilderness and Hubble to comply with the ministerial functions the trial court delegated to the parties and their counsel.

Although what remained to be done by the parties in our case was not technically an "accounting", there are cases in Utah which may be viewed as similar to this in that they address circumstances where an accounting remained to be provided. Some have found that the order appealed from is interlocutory. Those

cases include, however, either one or both of the following elements not found in our case. Either they are actions wherein an accounting is a part of the actual relief being sought (See Meagher v. Equity Oil Company, 299 P.2d 827 (Utah 1956)); or, it is anticipated at the time of the order that the court's subsequent involvement or later determination will be required (See Olson v. Salt Lake City Sch. Dist., 724 P.2d 960 (Utah 1986)).

Vance did not seek an accounting, only a determination of his entitlement to an exemption and the court granted that request. Further, the court asked the parties to calculate the numbers among themselves with no reference to or anticipation of any later court determination. The court's later involvement was not the result of unfinished work by the court, but of contempt of the court's July Order by Wilderness and Hubble. Ultimately Wilderness and Hubble volunteered to provide the information, in camera, and the court granted that request in October, 1995.

Even in the Meagher case cited above, the court held at 831 that although the portion of the order dealing with the requested accounting was viewed as interlocutory, "the judgment is final insofar as it determines the rights of the parties hereto in the Sheridan lease." Utah follows the general rule nationally, and the Meagher case, supra, is cited for that proposition in 3 ALR 2d 342, Later Case Service at page 300. The general proposition noted at 346 in the body of the annotation which reads:

. . . most courts recognize the general rule that finality for purposes of appeal is not necessarily

destroyed by reason of a provision for future accounting. The determinative factor is whether the equities have been finally adjudicated or the rights of the parties ascertained and finally determined.

Therefore, the determination in the July Order that Vance's commission under his agreement with the Robinsons is earnings from personal services and that the maximum amount of his disposable earnings available for attachment or garnishment is twenty-five per centum of his disposable earnings is fixed, final, and no longer subject to appeal. (See URCP 64D(d)(viii)(A)) The time for appealing the July Order passed without an extension sought or granted.

The July Order went even further than ruling on the substantive legal issue. It went into some detail to set forth the formula under which the numbers could be determined among the parties. It required the deduction of all amounts owed back to the Robinsons by Vance for their attorney's fees and costs under their agreement and it further required that Vance's aggregate disposable earnings available for attachment or garnishment be "calculated in accordance with this order under Rule 64D (d) (viii) (A), URCP."

The ALR citation, *supra*, at 373-374 addresses circumstances where the order fixes the principles under which the account is to be taken. There appears to be no Utah case on point and the ALR citation notes that most of the cases on that point have arisen in Illinois where it has generally been held that

"a decree which determines the equities in controversy is final for purposes of appeal, where it fixes the rules and principles upon which the account is to be

made." (Emphasis added)

If Wilderness and Hubble had felt that the July Order was confusing or required further clarification for its proper interpretation, Wilderness and Hubble could and should have filed a Motion to alter or amend the judgment under Rule 59(e), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure within 10 days after the entry of the judgment. They did not. They could have appealed it within 30 days after the entry of judgment. They did not. Now they are essentially seeking a retroactive extension of time to appeal the July Order. It is not warranted in the law.

The Supplemental Order was a post-judgment matter not originally contemplated by the July Order and was necessitated by the intentional disregard of the July Order by Wilderness and Hubble. The Supplemental Order, although titled as a Judgment to give it legal teeth, was merely the written representation of an agreement among counsel voluntarily entered into in the presence of the trial judge. There is nothing from which to draw objection. Again, if Wilderness and Hubble had felt that the Supplemental Order was confusing or required further clarification for its proper interpretation, Wilderness and Hubble could and should have filed a Motion to alter or amend the judgment under Rule 59(e), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure within 10 days after the entry of the judgment. They did not. They have now cast the burden upon this Court.

Counsel for Wilderness and Hubble now complains that the court should not have compelled Wilderness and Hubble's counsel to

disclose any information relating to the "confidential" settlement agreement between Wilderness and Hubble and Robinsons. He seems to have forgotten his own words written on September 5, 1995, wherein he responded to the Supplemental Request with a court-filed document stating that his clients...

...would propose to the Court that the terms and conditions of the settlement agreement be disclosed to the Court in camera, and that the Court render its decision as to what, if any amounts, are due Third-Party Defendant Vance; thus preserving the confidentiality of the Wilderness Building Systems, Hubble and Robinsons' settlement agreement. (R857)

His request became the court's command. An "in camera" meeting was scheduled by the court. Counsel for Wilderness and Hubble then sat in that meeting with the other attorneys in this case on October 12, 1995. There is no evidence in the record that he asked the court then for "an opportunity at hearing to present evidence supporting the grounds and reasons for maintaining the confidential nature of the settlement agreement" as he now suggests on appeal should have occurred. (See *Wilderness and Hubble's Brief at 9-10 and Minute Entry at R878*) He did not raise that issue earlier in his responsive Memorandum filed on September 5, 1995. (Fact #33, above, and R857) He noted no objection for the record to the numbers agreed upon by the parties and which counsel for Vance was instructed to put in judgment form. The actual Supplemental Order was transmitted via facsimile to counsel for Wilderness and Hubble on October 12 and no objection was voiced or filed. It was not until 12 days later that the Supplemental Order was signed and entered. Again, no response.

Counsel for Wilderness and Hubble had outlined the procedure for the court and indicated that if it were followed, it would preserve, in his words, "the confidentiality of Wilderness Building Systems, Hubble and Robinsons' settlement agreement". There has been no violation of the confidential nature of the agreement except to the extent volunteered by counsel for Wilderness and Hubble.

The Supplemental Order is not a "judgment" in the sense contemplated by the law. It is an agreement among attorneys that received court approval, entitled "judgment" for purposes of collection. This Court has no jurisdiction to hear an appeal from a joint agreement among parties, even if it is entitled a "judgment". Therefore, this entire appeal should be summarily dismissed.

Finally, this appeal is either, or both, frivolous or taken for delay. The pattern of conduct leading up to this appeal illustrates the degree of foot-dragging, gamesmanship, and contempt of the trial court's order displayed by Wilderness and Hubble. The appeal from the July Order has no merit at all. The weak basis under which the appeal has been brought--particularly in light of the attempted belated integration of the July Order speaks volumes regarding true motive.

Wilderness and Hubble are keenly aware of the extended cost of this action, which began merely with a Request for Hearing to determine Vance's right to an exemption to sustain life. Vance was successful under the legal theory, however, Wilderness and

Hubble have been careful to ensure that every dollar to which Vance is entitled is consumed by attorney's fees.

As a result, under Rule 33, URAP, Vance respectfully requests that this Court order that he receive, from either Wilderness and Hubble or their counsel, costs, which include damages, doubled, and his reasonable attorney's fees in this matter.

II. VANCE IS ENTITLED TO 40% OF ALL AMOUNTS CREDITED TO ROBINSONS FROM WILDERNESS AND HUBBLE.

Wilderness and Hubble argue that there was no agreement for Vance to receive 40% of the amounts recovered by Robinsons from him. In support of their argument, Wilderness and Hubble point out apparent inconsistencies in the trial and deposition testimony of Vance throughout these proceedings. Taken out of context, inconsistencies appear, but the actions of Wilderness and Hubble prior to the allegations in their Brief say just the opposite. Wilderness and Hubble are attempting to hide that from this Court. *(See Wilderness and Hubble's Brief, Fact #7 at page 2.)*

On September 20, 1994, Wilderness and Hubble filed a document with the trial court entitled "Memorandum in Support of Motion for and Order of Execution Against Payment Proceeds Pursuant to U.R.C.P. Rule 69" (R383-387) ("September Memo"). That was where Wilderness and Hubble made the argument to the trial court that they were entitled to execute on the 40% payment claim which Vance was entitled to receive from Robinsons. In that Memorandum Wilderness and Hubble commented upon the clarity of Vance's deposition testimony:

4. During his deposition of April 13, 1992, Third-Party Defendant Vance also indicated that he and the Robinsons had agreed that he would receive forty percent (40%) of any funds collected against the Defendants relative to the lawsuit. (September Memo, page 3--emphasis added; R385)

In the September Memo, Wilderness and Hubble further stressed the trial testimony to support their claim for Vance's money.

3. The evidence presented at the June 1, 1994 trial revealed that Dennis Vance entered into an agreement with the Robinsons prior to the commencement of this lawsuit wherein he would receive a percentage of any recovery they might obtain from Defendants Kerry Rick Hubble, Wilderness Building Systems, Inc. or Kevin Kay Gneiting." (September Memo, page 3--emphasis added; R385)

Now, ironically, Wilderness and Hubble have done a flip-flop, have either ignored or forgotten their own statements and conclusions filed in September, 1994. Today in their Brief at page 8 they twist the facts and say:

During the June 1, 1994 trial of this matter, Dennis Vance also testified unequivocally that there was no agreement between he and the Robinsons relative to this case. (Emphasis added)

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